Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Jaypore E-commerce Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jaypore E-commerce Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and loss or total comprehensive income
(comprising of loss and other comprehensive income) , changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

- In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluatc the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statemenls, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation. _—
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10.We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexurc B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Further,
in the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to verify whether the backup of
books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has been maintained on a
daily basis on servers physically located in India during the year.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A”,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 40 (b) to the financial statements;

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as al March 31, 2025 under the applicable
law or Indian Accounting Standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-
term contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in Note 47(vii)(a) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
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(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note
47 to the financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, [other than] as

disclosed in the Note 47(vii)(b) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 47 to the
financial statements); and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software

which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log), except for changes made through specific access
at the application level and for direct database changes. During the course of performing our
procedures, except for the aforesaid instances of audit trail not maintained at application and
database level, where we are not able to comment upon, we did not notice any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. Further, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

13. The Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

oxko. busare~

Sonika Burman

Partner

Membership Number: 504839
UDIN: 25504839BMOXPK1330

Place of the Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of J aypore E-
Commerce Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Notc”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls wilh reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policics
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
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company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate hecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on [the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

nika Burman

Partner
Membership Number: 504839
UDIN: 25504839BMOXPK1330

Place of the Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the
books of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

i.

ii.

1ii.

iv.

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e

(@

(b)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by
the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

The Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 3 to the financial statements).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and Intangible Assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or Intangible Assets does not arise.

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
(formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has
appropriately disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with
third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate
for each class of inventory and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of account.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account (Also, refer Note 47(ii) to the financial statements)

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting
under clause 3 (iii)(a) to (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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vii. (a)

(b)

viii.

ix. (a)

(b)

()

(d)

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred
inr Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of provident fund, goods and services tax, labour welfare fund and professional tax,
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including employees’ state insurance, sales tax, income tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. However, there are no arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at balance
sheet date, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2025, which have
not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of | Nature of | Amount Period to Forum where | Remarks, if
the dues (Rs.) which the the dispute is any
statute amount pending
relates
Income Income Tax Rs. FY 2021-22 CIT (Appeals) NA
Tax Act, 4,414.68
1947 lakhs
Goods and | Goods and Rs. 89.23 | FY 19-20, 20- | Assistance NA
services services Tax | lakhs 21, 23-24 commissioner
Tax, 2017

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest to any lender during the year.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.
(Also, refer Note 47 (xiii) to the financial statements)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the Company.
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(e)

®

x. (a)

(b)

xi. (a)

(b)

(c)

Xii.

Xiil.

xiv. (a)

(b)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the gencrally accepted auditing practices in India, a reporl under Seclion 143(12)
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by
the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is a private company as defined under section 2(68) of the Act and has entered into
transactions only with the related parties covered under section 2(76)(viii). Consequently, the
provisions of section 188 are not applicable to the Company. Further, the Company is not
required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.
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XV,

xvi. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Xvil,

xviii.

XIX.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) has four number of CICs in the group CICs as part of the Group as detailed in
Note 47 (xii) to the financial statements.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 2,314.62 lakhs in the financial year and of Rs.
2,928.22 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios (refer note 50 to the financial statements), ageing and expected
dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of J. aypore E-commerce
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Page 50f 5

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

01\\)*& Q\W
Sonika Burman
Partner

Membership Number: 504839
UDIN: 25504839BMOXPK1330

Place of the Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025
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Bulance Sheet as at March 31,2025

(All nmounts ave in @ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As ult As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3(a) 1,500.55 2,220.95
Capital work-in-progress a(b) 255.29 260.92
Right-of-use nssets 4 6,131.13 5,930.67
Other intangible assets 3(c) 44.37 186.50
Financial Assels
(i) Investments 5 4.25 4.25
(ii) Security deposits 6 1,084.89 787.26
(iii) Other financial assets 7 43172 259.01
Deferred tax asset {net) 8 3,559.66 3,559.66
Non cuirent tax asset 9 12.19 3.71
Other non- current assels 10 69.10 36,39
Total non- current assets 093,15 13,249.32
Current assets
Inventories 1 3,849.13 3,927.55
Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 620,81 183.92
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 632.56 1,355.57
(ii}) Security deposits 14 10.55 1.35
(iv) Other financial assets 15 6.12 7.22
Other current assets 16 3,256.05 2,040.96
Total current assets 8.476.12 8.425.87
Total Assets 21,469.27 m
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 17 2,146.54 1,636.54
Other eyuity
()Reserve & Surplus 18 Aq1.48 (1,061.07)
Total Equity 2.478.02 575.47
Liabilties
Non- current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 187.50 937.50
(ii) Lease labilities 19 5,564.84 5438.19
(iil) Deposits 155.16 74.61
Other Non Current Liabilities 21 16.08 9.28
Provisions 22 1026, .8
Total non- current liabilities 5.1_16?} 6.724:‘:;4:
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
0] Borrowings 23 6,835.00 9,228.52
(ii) Lease Liabilities 24 1,829.50 1,375,89
(i) Trade payibles 25
~Total Dutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
: 118,21 325.11
onterprises
-Totul vutstanding dues of ereditors other than micro
enterprises and s:‘ud] enlerprises 3,395.44 2,838.75
(iv) Othey finnncial liabilities 26 42.86 122,32
Other current iabilities 27 389.74 232,86
Provisions 28 264,28 268.86 |
Total current liabilitles 12,875, 04 1 2,41
L Total equity and liabilitics 21,469.27 mibz!.l?

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firin Registration Numher: 304026E/F, 300009
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Sonika Burman

Partner

Membership Number 504839
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 15, 2025
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Jaypore E-C ee Private Limited

CIN: Umgnun-mzmzl'l‘(‘.tm:r.-q

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March, 2025
(Al amounts are in ® Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended March | Year ended March 31,
Particulars Notes ety 202

Revenue from operations 29 9,032.79 7,959.47
Other income 30 314,97 L5030
Total income 9,352,76 8,200.77
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 31 505.29 791,10
Purchase of stock-in- trade 33 2,958.04 3.517.48
Changes in inventories of work in Pprogress, stock in trade and 78.42 (755.87)
finished goods 32
Employee benefits expense 34 2,023.41 2,625.68
Finance costs a5 1,688.03 1,380.60
Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 2,697.26 2,517.74
Other expenses a7 4,995, 4:161.42
Total expenses 1 6.4t | 14,2385
(Loss) before tax (5:593.04) (6,028.38)
Income tax expense: 38
Current tax - -
Deferred tax - (210.56)
Total tax expense - (420.56) |

(Loss) for the year 15,533.9_:1)_ {5,698.82)

Other Comprehensive income/(loss)

Itemns that will not to be reclassified to profit and loss

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan 48 (3.81) 33.46
income 1ax effect on above - (1.36)
Total other Comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax (3.81) 32.10
Total Comprehonsive income/(loss) for the year - (7597.45) (5,666.71)

Earnings per equity share [Nominal value of share Rs.

10 (March 31, 2024 : Rs, 10)] 39
(1) basie (34.01) (38.72)
(2) Diluted (34.01) (38.72)

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Nupniber: 404026E/E-300009

Place: Myrfibai_—" i
A5, 2025 Date: Mgy 15, 2025

Date: M
on QNSW ! ))’X"
Amit Dwivedi /

Sonika Burman

Partner Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 504839 PAN: AHAPD2074Q
Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbaj

Date: May 15, 2025 Date: May 15, 2025




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN: UsinooMH 2002PTC4a0a0y

Statement of Cash Flows for the yeur ended March 31,2025
(Al amounts nre in % Lakhs, unloss otherwise stated)

Particulars Year emit:]dzlswnrch 31, | Year em:)c,l“l‘warch 31,
Losx before tax (5,593.64) (6,028.38)
Adjustments for:

Dépreciption and amortisation expense 2,697.26 2,517.74
Excess provision written back {32.45) -
Finance cost 1,688.03 1,380.60
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipinent (62.42) LR F]
Net fair value gain on financial instruments at FVTPL (26.22) 163}
Gain on termination of leases (102.00) {108.46)
Unwinding of interost ncome on secnrity depogii (73.78) (61.00)
Galn on sale of current investmonts (19,21} {49.21)
Opermting profit before working capital changes (1,524.43) (2,366.70)
Change in working eapital

(Increase) in trade receivaliles (104.46) (76.37)
Decrease/{Ineresse) in inventories 78.42 (755.87)
(Incronse) in other current assets (916.69) (1,018.04)
{Incrvsse) in other financial assets and security deposits (%68.4:4) {334.07}
Increase in trade payables 349.80 1,442.80
Increase in other liabilities and deposits 243.42 97.06
(Pecrease)/ Increase in Provisions [69.5¢ Hir o
Cash generated from operations (2,005.06) (2.9209,84)
Incomi taxes paid (net of refund) H.48 L4a
Net cash flows used in operating activities (2084.44) (2,928 .25)
Canh flow from investing activities

Paymients far Property, plant and Equipment (554.59) {1,248.65)
Praceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 449.38 +
Payments for purchase of investments {2.405.93) (6,008.62)
Proceeds from sale of investments 2,425.14 6,057.83
Investment in subsidiary = {4.25) |
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities {86.00) (1.:203.69)
Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of shares 7,500.00 2,500.00
Procoeds from borrowings 5:356.48 6,881.02
Repmymen| of borrowing (8,500.00) (1,500.00)
Paymient of lease liabilities (1.291.02) (1,701 .82)
Interest on lease liabilities (655.54) (643.51)
Interest on Lurrowings (1,029.15) {735.69)
Interest paid - others {1aq) (Lgo)
Net cash flows from financing activities 1,377.43/ 5.398.60
Net increase (decrease) in cash nnd cash equivalenis (723.01) i, 6
Cash ond each equivalonts at the beginning of the year V35567 By.01
Coal and ensh eqivalents at the end of the year 632,50 L.355.57
Naut Cash investing activities

- Acquisition of right-of-use-assets 1,973.28 981.57
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand (refer note 13) 0.21 0.78
[alanues with banks: (refer note 13)

- On current accounts 739 Lada.55
Balance with e-wallet companios (refer note 13) f.63 1124

ﬁgz.gh! i,

Totul cash and cash equivalents

Notes:

The Statgment af Cash Flows L licon tirepared under the indirect method as set out i the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows",

The ahave Statement of Cash Flows shauld be read in conjunetion with the

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Sonika Burman

Partner

Membership Number 504839
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 15, 2025

ying notes,

DN 0840055
e =5 Place: Mumbai
. Date: May 15, 2025

Chief Executive Officer
PAN: AHAPD2074Q
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 15, 2025

Date: May 15,




daypore E-Commeree Private Limited

CIN: UsmunMHaolamusnaq

Statement of change in eouity for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al nmounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwive stated)

A Equity Share Captital

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up No. of Shares A

As at April 01, 2023 1,46,98,626 1,.469.87
Shares issued during the year 16,06, 667 166,67
As ut March g1, 2024 1,674,675, 1,646,
Shares Issuedd during the year 50,00,000 500.00
As ot March 31,2025 1 1736,

Other Equity

Reserve & Surplus
Attributnble 1o owner of Jaypore Bocommeree —[

Private Ltd

Reserves and surplus

Particulars Total other equity
Securities Premium Retained carnings
(Refer note 18) (Refer note 18)
As nt April 01, 2023 15,604.91 (1:3,931.99) 2,272,32
Shares fssued duting the year 2,333.33 - 2,333.33
Lasss for the year - (5,698.82) (5,698.82)

Other Comprehensive Incorme/{liss) - RERT) 32.10
As at March #1, 202q 17,047.64 glszggﬂ.za! (1L,061.07)

Asat April 01, 2024 17,937.64 (18,908.71) (1,061.0%)
Shares Premium issued during the year 7,000,00 7,000.00
Loss for the year - (5,593.64) (5,593.64)
Other Comprehensive income, (lnss) - (3.81) {3.81)
As ot March 31 2oz, | £4,0597.0 (24,506.1 341.48
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conj ion with the panying notes,

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 404026/ K-100009

Date: May 15, 2025
onha Q:USW

Sonika Burnian Amit Dwived| /

Purtner Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 504839 PAN: AHAPD2074Q
Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbai

Date: May 15, 2025 Date: May 15, 2025




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.

Corporate information

Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited (the “Company”), a private limited company domiciled in India,
is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company
is shifted from B-64, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1, New Delhi — 110020 to Piramal Agastya Corporate
Park, Building ‘A’, 4th and 5th Floor, Unit No. 401, 403, 501, 502, L.B.S. Road, Kurla, Mumbai-400070.

The Company deals in linen, readymade garments, textiles, coated fabrics, jewelry and also accessories.
Also, the Company provides marketplace and business support services to other business.

The financial statements have been approved and adopted by the Board in their meeting held on May
15, 2025.

2. Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following which
have been measured at fair value:

e  Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.
(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see
below), and are effective 1 April 2023:

e Disclosure of accounting policies — amendment to Ind AS 1
Definition of accounting estimate — amendment to Ind AS 8.

o Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction — amendments to
Ind AS 12

The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods. Specifically, no changes would be
necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company’s accounting policy
already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

(iv) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the results of operations during the reporting
period. The actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation that have a significant




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

(a) Employee benefit plans

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discounting rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discounting rate. In determining the appropriate
discounting rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government
bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are
based on expected future inflation rates.

(b) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits.

As at March 31, 2025, the Company has accumulated tax losses of Rs. 10,656.93 Lakhs (March 31, 2024:
Rs. 10,656.93 Lakhs) carried forward as per income tax records of the Company.

(¢) Provision on inventories

The Company provides for inventories based on policy, past experience, current trend and future
expectations of these materials depending on the category of goods.

(d) Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. It considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise
or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

(e) Going concern

The management of the Company, based on the financial projections, is confident that the Company's
sales would grow, and profitability would improve. Further, Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited
(Holding Company), confirming its financial and operational support to the Company for its continued
operations in future, which will permit it to discharge its liabilities, as and when they fall due, and
continue to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared by
the managerment assuming going concern which contemplates realization of dasalb,aﬂfi?_ '
liabilities in the normal course of business. ,;,,_\ A




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(v) Functional and Presentation Currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee () which is the functional currency of the
Company. All amounts are rounded to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

(vi) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when il is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:
It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and habilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited
CIN: Us1900MH2012PTCg22224

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipiment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly atlributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, during the reporting period in

which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Dcprcciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset estimated by the management. Depreciation on
additions is provided on a pro rata basis from the month of installation or acquisition. Depreciation on deletions/ disposals is provided on a pro rata basis upto the
month preceding the month of deletions/ disposals. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the

period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its tangible fixed assets:

(a) Assets where useful life is same as Schedule IT

Assets

Useful life as prescribed by Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013

Office equipment's

5 years

(b) Assets where useful life differ from Schedule IT

Assets Useful life as prescribed by Schedule II of the Estimated useful life
Companies Act, 2013

Furniture and fixtures — retail 10 years 5-6 years

stores

Furniture and fixtures — other 10 years 7 years

than retail stores

Motor Vehicles 8 Years 5 years

Computers 3 vears for end user devices and 6 years for servers 4 years

Electrical fittings, installations |10 years 5 years

and equipment’s

Useful life of assets different from that prescribed in Schedule IT has been estimated by the management, supported by technical assessment.

Leasehold Assets

Assets

Useful life as prescribed by Schedule IT of the
Companies Act, 2013

Leasehold impr 15 at stores

5 to 6 years or period of lease, whichever is lower

Leasehold improvements other than stores

Perod of lease

Interiors have been treated as part of leasehold improvements. Therefore, useful life shall be based on period of lease.

Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing less than five thousand rupees, are depreciated within one year from the date the asset is ready to use.

Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of

Profit and Loss within other gains/ losses.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if

appropriale.
Particulars Leasehold Electrical Furniture and | Office & Studio| Computers Vehicles Total
Improvments | equipments fixtures equipment

As at April 01, 2023 1,070.40 | 886.70 226.95 297.85 - 2,971.69
Add: Additions 476.50 275.23 206.39 48.54 20.75 - 1,027.41
Less: Disposals - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 1,546.90 765.02 1,093.09 275.49 218.60 - 2.999.10
Add: Additions 158.93 46.05 118.81 23.57 50.88 36.37 434.61
Less: Disposals 148.84 96.17 129.62 121.17 95.48 59128
As at March 31,2025 1,556.99 714.90 1,082.28 177.89 274.00 36.37 2.842.43
Accumulated Depreciation

As at April o1, 2023 256.61 166.20 276.24 66.68 110.16 - 975.89
Add: Depreciation charge for the 244.33 152.37 268.81 64.54 72.21 - 802.26
year
Less: Disposals - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 600.04 218.57 545.05 131.22 182.27 - 1,778.15
Add: Depreciation charge for the 263.14 153.94 220.23 58.68 70.25 1.81 768.05
year
Less: Disposals 1.88 06.80 48.61 18.46 - 204.32
As at March 31,2025 862.20 668.48 141.29 234.16 1.81 2,341.88

Net block o AN XN
As at March 21,2025 694.70 280.06 413.80 36.60 29.84 84,56 "V ADB00.55
As at March 21, 2024 045.96 446.45 548.04 144.27 s S dev0.05

Note1: The Company has not revalueil its property, p

ant and equipment during the yeur
Note2: See note 20 for information on property, plant and equipment p]rdb(-'d i :




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN:
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

Us1900MH2012PTC422224

(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3(b) Capital work-in-progress

3(c)

Particulars Amount

As at April o1, 2023 216.87
Add: Additions 260.92
Less: Capitalised 216.87
As at March 31, 2024 260.92
Add: Additions 255.29
Less: Capitalised 260.92
As at March 31, 2025 255.29

As at March 31, 2025

Ageing of Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)

Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years

(i)Projects in progress 255.20 255.2Q

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years

(i)Projects in progress 260.92 260.92

Note1:Capital work in progress mainly consist of lease hold improvements in the upcoming stores

Note2: The Company does not have any CWIP which is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment, whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Amortisation methods and periods

A summary of amortisation policies applied to the Company's intangible assets is as below:

| Intangible Assets JUseful life |Amortisation method used
[Software |3 vears |Straight line method
Particulars Computer
Software
Cost
As at April 01, 2023 212.84
Add: Additions 209.81
Less: Disposals =
As at March 31, 2024 422.65
Add; Additions 14.26
Less: Disposals -
As at March 81,2025 436.91
Accumulated Amortisation
As at April 01, 2023 183.34
Amortisation for the year 52.81
As at March 31, 2024 236.15
Amaortisation for the year 156.39
As at March 31,2025 292.54
Net block

As at March 31,2025

As at March 31, 2024

ible assets.

Note: The Company has not lued its int:




Jaypore E-Commerce Privale Limited

CIN: UsigooM11zo12I"I'Cq22224

Notes o financial statements for the peried ended March 11,2025
(Al amonnis are in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 Right-of-use assel

il'the comtract conveys the right t control the use of an identified asset for a period of lime in exchange for consideration T

T conlains, a leas: nlract is, or contains, a leds
ek, the Company assess whether:

ALinceplion of a contract, the Company assesses whether i contract is,
assess whether a contrad conveys the right Lo control the use of an identified is

= The contract involves e use of an idenlified assel — Uhis may be specified explicilly or implicitly and shauld be physieally distinel or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinet asset. 1f the supplicr has  subslantive substitution
right, then the asset is not identified;

= The Company has the right Lo oblain substantially all af the cennomic bencfits from the use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

= The Company has the right 1o direet the use of the asset. The Company has the right when it has the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpese the asset is used In rare cases where the decision about how and
for what purpase t] set is nsed is predetermined, the Company has the right ta direet the use of the asset citlier the Campany has the right 1o operate the asset; or the Company designed the asset in 4 way that predetermines how and for what
purpose it will be used

At inception or on reassessiment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company alloeales the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices
Wi fhie Gl e thic bessce

Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises 4 right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for shart-term leases which are less than 12 months and leases of low value assets. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cast, which

comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct ensts incurred less any lease incentives received

The right-isl sl b mialvpes Iyt elispurselintisid vondig e st lgy Lot -Ee miot D] drerany Wi oomrommyeseeesaibietnl e o Dl v lher of Ve epind of Uie sl lifle of the gt e asset ir Dhie e of Use lease b I ownmshigs of U Jeases] dasal transd
the Company at the end of the los w0 v o7 thie gt redbects the o n\n’m nfm ‘|1I\h‘l- sar et deprociating b ealonlated weing the estimntod issofal e of the weses. The estimntod wsefil fives of tight-of nie nssets are ddmrmined e the same basi e
those of property. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by lasses, if any, adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lense liabillu

The lease lia initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that arc not paid at the date, The lease are dis d using Lhe interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments The lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilitics is re-measured if there is a modification arising duc to change in the lease lerm, change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset, When the
lease liability is re-measured in this way, @ corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recarded in profit ar loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero,

The Company presents right-of-use assets Lhat do not meet the definition of investment property, and lease liabilities, separately in the Standalone Balance Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assels

The Company applies the short-term lease i ion Lo iLs sh leases (i ¢, thase Jeases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the ¢ daleand do ot contain a purchase option) 1t alsn appics the lasc of low-
value assels ion to leases that are considered to be low value Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are as ex basis over the leass term
Wihere thir Commmny by the b
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership of un asset is classified as an operating lease. Assets subject to operating leases arc included in the property, plant and equipment. Rental income on an
operating lease is recognised in the of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognised as an expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Lass
Asat As al
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Right to use assets (refer note 41) By 593007
"atal [FHTRE] Gy
Set out below are the cartying amounts of right-of- et and during the year.
Buildings
As al April 01, 2023 6,611.77
Addition 98157
Lama; Aronvrtins o fvmrenne itz fy
As at March 31, 2024 Ho.67
Addition 197328
Lese: At lastion expesiso Lyya s
As at March 31,2025 faan
As al
5 Investments March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current
in yrhally wrwpeed fiary 424
420
. Asal As at
6 Security deposils March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Unsecured, considered good
Security depasits 1,004 8y Fhp.zh
Lofyfy Zizus_
As At As Al
7 Other financlal assels March 31,2025 Mar 31, 2024
Non-current
Net investment in sublease 259,04
a39.01

8 Deferred lax assels (nel) As at
March 31,2025
Deferred tax asseis (net) Qi 66 1550 66
Ai505:65 RIGHL RO
Balance compri y di ibutable to :
As st As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation and amortisalion expenses 156.08 156.08
Unabsorbed demecnhon/lluﬂnm Laoss 3,089 41 2,089 41
Impact of di dr it made in d. withInd AS 116 19253 19253
Provision for gratiuty :nd compensated absences 114 48 11448
Others . - S -
Total deferred lax assests R mARLOR
Rermeasiroment gzined{hses) i difinie) fresiefit plans (e36) (1.36)
Tatal deferved tax llahilitles REG) (RGN
Net delerred Loy ansets 355960 .559.00
‘ Tax logses and and Defined Benefit
Particulars depreclatlon S rarilaatlon Impact of Ind As 116 obllgation Others Total
As ol Aprll o1, 203y 2.Bin30 11005 . Ba FTORL) amneah
[{Chiare Cridlizad
i s n.mnwm o pafit i Inas = ztog | A EAAL] A {1724 Adin6 )
mprehensive income = - - (130) . 11361
at 4 a.080.41 [TRNT H.nz 155066
fChiged}f Credited ==
1oy EnnE of el sl lues - - . . = |
= heb it o i . - - -
An ut March 41, 2023 (LR (I NT] finz RARGA
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Notes to financial stalements

t1he period ended March 31,2025

(Al amounts are in € Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1z

As al
Marchi 31,2025

g Non current lax assels (nel)

Liseettme ey poceliabiie

[ER V]

Othier non-current ussels As al As al
ZURF March 31, 2024
Unsecured, eonsidered gond
Capital Advances 11y iWhie
fn.10 A6

Invenlories

Raw malerials, componcnts, stores and spares, and packing materials arc valuced at lower of cast or net realisable value. Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis

“Traded gaods, work-in-prograss and finichod goods are vulued ot caat or net realisable value, whichever is lawer. Cast is determined vn weighted avuiage Lost basis

As al
March 31,2025

As at
March 31, 2024

At lower of cost or net realisablu value

Finished gands 1,206 05 1,208.97

Workain-progress N 163 56 N 10734

Stock-in-trade 24MA2 25u124
5.A49.13 39165

Wrile-downs of inventories ta net realisable value amounted to INR 81.38 lakhs (31 March 2024 — 634 23 lakhs) These were recognised as an expense during the year and included in ‘changes in value
X

of i of work-in-progress, st do and finished goods’ in statement of profit and loss

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflect the Company’s unconditianal right to

consideration (that is, payment is duc only on the passage of time),

Trade

i the
of collecting the contractual cash flows xnd therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using Lhe effective interest method, less loss allowance.

price as they do not contain significant financing components, The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective

For trady rurwivahles and contract assets, the Company applies the simplified appmach required by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime lasses ta be recognised from initial

Tecognitiing uf il receivables.

Asal Asal
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
"Trade receivables from others a9 138.20
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 44) 23361 8279
Less: Loss allowance L) iz 10]
Break-up of security details
Trade recelvables
Considered good, secured
Considered good, Unsecured 620 81 18392
Considerd good - Secured
‘Trade receivables, which have significant increase in credit risk -
‘Trade receivables - credit impaijred g | A
625.52 221.08
Impairment allowance
Considerd good - Unsecured
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Lams: ases alfowintiee (4.71) (37.16)
fisno.Hy 183,93
Aging of trade receivables
Asat March 31,3085
folloy dued. | daty
Particulars
bt Not Dua Laas than 6 Montha Gmonths 1 year 1 ayesrs B 3years M'“;:':“’ Total
{Undisputed Trade receivables
- considered good = 7 4260 > = Gani
= - z0 266 x
- which have significant Increase In credit risk
J—— - .
571m 4n iy  7am 203 FYy [Tre
L Live st = E Loy {a.68) a7}
Total Tradn revsivalibes - 70 FTET) 7an . . e
AsatMarch 31, 2024
Outstanding for following perfods from due date of payment (If uyment date not available then date of transaction)
Fartinilors o
Uil Hat D Lews than 6 Months 6 months - 1 year e a3 Vearn x: n3 Toml
Undisputed Trade receivables
oo it " - 18394 - 1340
+ tehichi hawe di
~ o wgend - - - I Fran
iy - E T
[Py e - = - e ]
 utal Trmde receivables - - 18395 - = = 1839z |
No trade receivables are doe from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person
‘Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days
The Company creates all for all trade recei based on lifetime expected eredit loss madel (ECL) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financlal assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security. Based on Lhe evaluation made by the
mansgement, expected credit loso reversed in the curvent year is Rs, 32.48 (March 31, 2024: Nil),
Asat As at
13 Cash and cash equlvalents March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with bank:
-On current accounts 62733 1,343 55
Cash on hand LEL] 078
Balance with e-wallet companies 5.02 1129
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Mrrtes 1o fimamoial ststements for the perlod ended March 31,2025
(Al umaunts are In ¥ Lukhs, unless otherwise slated)

14 Security depasits

Security denosits

15  Other financlal assets

Employes Advance

16 Other current assets

! nead unl ise slated
Ralanca with gaverntent suthorities
Other recetvables
Prepald expensen
Right to recover returned goois (refer note 28)
Advance to creditors
=Conxldered good
-Considered doubtful
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances

ViR
Asal Asat
March 31,2025 Mareh 31, 3024
As gt As al
March 31,2025 March 31, 2084
hag
Gz
Asal Anul
March 91,2035 March 31, 2034
8,704.84 2319 40
7524 -
4164 2213
80.47 Bt Brad
=, 903,1 2 ,i ILls
354.76 527.97
27.30 32.78
(22.30) (32.78)
334.76 BR7.97
325605 2,04m.20
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

17 Equity Share Capital

a

b

)

)

c)

d

e

)

N~

Authorised sharve eapital No. of Shares Amount
Equity shares of 10 each

As at April 01, 2023 16,500,000 1,650.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 16,500,000 1,650.00
Increase during the year 4,000,000 400.00
Reclassificd from preference share 1,500,000 150.00
As at March 31, 2025 22,000,000 2,200

Preference shares of ¥ 10 each

As at April 01, 2023 1,500,000 150.00
Increase during the year - -

As at March 31, 2024 1,500,000 __150.00
Reclassified into Equity (1,500,000) (150.00)

As at March 31, 2025 - -

1ssued share capital No. of Shares Amount
Fully paid up

i) Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued and subscribed

As at April o1, 2023 14,698,626 1,469.87
Increase during the year 1,666,667 166.67
As at March 31, 2024 16,365,293 1,636.54
Increase during the year 5,000,000 500.00
As at March 31, 2025 21,365,293 2,136.54
Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled Lo receive remaining assels of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

Pursuant to special resoluation passed on Feb 06, 2025 the company converted its compulsory convertible preference share into 1,500,000
equity share of Rs 10 Each

Rights Issue
On March 25, 2025, the company invited its shareholders to subscribe to a rights issue of 5,000,000 equity shares
at an issue price of INR 150 per share. The issue was fully subscribed.

Shares held by Holding Company
As at March 31, As at March
2025 31, 2024
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 21,365,287 16,365,287
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number % Holding Number % Holding
Equity shares
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail 21,365,287 100.00% 16,365,287 100.00%
Limited

21,365,287 100.00% 16,365,287 100.00%
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

f)

18

Details of shareholding of Promoters

Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2025

No. of % of total % Change
Name of the Promoter ) numbers of | during the
Shares
shares year
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 21,365,287 100.00% 0.00%
Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2024
No. of % of total % Change
Name of the Promoter ) numbers of | during the
Shares
shares year
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail. Limited 16,365,287 100.00% 0.00%
Other Equity
Reserve & Surplus
As at March As at March 31,
31, 2025 2024
Securities premium 24,937.64 17,937.64
Retained earnings {24,596.16) (18,998.71)
Total 341.48 (1,061.07)
Securities premium
As at April 01, 2023 15,604.31
Premium on issue of shares 2,333.33
As at March 31, 2024 17,937.64
Premium on issue of shares 7,000.00
As at March 31, 2025 z4,9§7.6g
Retained earnings
As at April 01, 2023 (13,331.99)
Loss for the year {5,698.82)
Re-measurement Profit on defined benefit plan 32.10
As at March 31, 2024 (18,998.71)
Loss for the year (5,593.64)
(3.81)

Re-measurement Profit on defined benefit plan
As at March 31, 2025

(24,596.16)
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Notes to financial statements for the period cnded March 31,2025
(All amounts are in ® Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19 Leasc liabilitics

20

22

23

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Non Current
Lease liabililies Gufig g S3800
G:504.84 didaB.1g
The following is the lease liabiliti for year ended:
Asat As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the year 6,814.08 7,042.81
Additions during the year 2,156.44 1,520.50
Delelion during the year (183.16) (538.93)
Finance cost incurred during the year (refer note 35) 655.54 643.51
Payment of lease labilites(net on gain of {2,048.56) (1,853.81)
terminalion of lease)
Balance at cnd of the year 7,394.34 6,814.08
Non Current (Refer note 19) 5.564.84 5438.19
Current (Refer note 24) 1,829.50 1,375.89
7:394.34 6,8149.08
Non Current Borrowings
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
‘Term Loan from bank {Secured}* 937.50 1,500.00
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer note 23) {750.00) (562,50)
187.50 937.50

* Term loan of Rs. 1,500 lakhs has been taken from [CICI Bank which is secured by First Pari-Passu charge on entire current assets and receivable and
Second Pari-Passu charge on movable property of the Company. The Loan is disbursed to meet the working capital requirements. The loan is repayable
in eight quarterly installment starting from July 10, 2024. The rate of interest is 1 year Marginal Cost of Funds-based Lending Rate (MCLR)

P As at As at
Other Non Current Liabilities March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred Income 16.08 928
1608 .28
Provisi Asat As at
oS ons March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current
Provision for gratuity (refer note 48) 192.64 247.83
19204 247.83
Borrowings
As at As at
Current March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Loan from the related party (Unsecured)* 6,085,00 5,932.00
Working Capital Demand Loan (Secured)**® 2,734.02
Current maturities of long-term borrowing (Secured) (Refer note 20) 750.00 562.50
6.835.00 \2a8.52

* “I'he loan has been taken from the Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited (Holding Company). The loan is for short term period, therefore, there will
not be any significant difference in fair value and carrying amount of loan taken.The Loan has been taken to meet the working capital requirements and
is repayable on demand. The rate of interest is 6 months Margina! Cost of Funds-based Lending Rale (MCLR) + 0,25 % spread per annum, There is no
default in repay of loan install or pay of interest thereon as per the terms and condilions of loan taken. The Company has used the funds

for the specific purpose for which it was taken

*"Working capital loan consists of Loan [rom Axis Bank and ICICI Bank The details of the same is as follows:

Working capital Demand Loan of Rs. 1,994,02 lacs has taken from Axis Bank which is secured by First Pari-Passu charge on entire current assets and
movable property, plant and equipment of the Company. The Loan is disbursed to meet the working capilal requirements. The loan is repayable in four
tranches due on different dales in Financial year 2024-25. ‘The rate of interest is 3 months Marginal Cost of Funds-based Lending Rate (MCLR) + 0.50 %
spread per annum

Working capital Demand Loan of Rs. 740 lacs has taken from ICICI Bank which is secured by First Pari-Passu charge on entire current assets and second

Pari-Passsu charge on movable property, plant and equipment of the Company. The Loan is disbursed to meet the working capital requirements, ‘The
loan is repayable in two tranches due on different dales in Financial year 2024-25. The rate of interest is Repo rate plus 1.95% spread.

‘Lhere is no defaull in repayment of loan installments or payment of interest thereon as per Lhe terms and conditions of loan taken from relaled party

1, The Company has registered/satisfied all the charges whereever required with Registrar of Companies within the statutory period.
2, The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Net Debt reconciliation

Cash and cash equivalents 63256 1,355 57
Current borrowings 6,835.00 9,228 52
Non Current borrowings 187.50 937,50
Lease Liabililies 7,394.35 6,814,08
Net Debt (13,784.29) (15,624.53)

Charter
[ co L "';.




Jaypore E-Commecree Private Limited

CIN: U51900MH2012PTC422224

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025
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24 Leasc liabilities

Asat
March 31,2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Current

Lease liabililies 1,829.50 1,375.89
182950 1375:89

As at As at
25 Trade Payables March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Current

Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises 118.21 32511

Tulal vutstanding dues of eredilors: Others 4,224 16 2,542,116

Trade Payables to related parties 166.28 296.59
3,513.65 3,163.86

Aging of Trade Payables

As at March 31, 2025
8] ding for following periods from duc date of payment (if payment date not available then date of transaction)
Particulars T
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;z::n 3 Total
Undispuled Wade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - 118.21 - - 118.21
Cithers 1,290.18 2,061,70 43.56 2.39544
“Fotal 19014 2,179,091 - 43,50 HFLE65
As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment (if payment date not available then date of transaction) |
Particulars
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years M“;‘;;‘;:“ 3 Total
Umnadi 1 trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 268.81 a5 41 .14 0.2y 0.51 34511
Others 2.461.02 335.29 22.64 Q.22 9.58 2,838.75
‘Total 2,750.72 370.80 22,78 2.46 10.09 3.163.86
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosure are
required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the management,
there are outstanding dues to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under MSMED Act, 2006,
‘The following disclosure are required under Section 22 of MSMED Act, 2006 under the chapter of delayed payment to micro and small enterprises:
Particulars As at As at
March a1.2025 | March 31, 2024
Principal amount due Lo suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and r ing nnpaid as at vear end, 134!
[nterest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Acland r unpaid as at vear end. 0.87 -
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 29
54
Interest paid, under Seclion 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.
[nterest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Amount of interest due and payable [or the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
it it L of il sceroed ind oemainiog g ol Qi el of ecounibing year. 167 -
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disall of a deductibl diture under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

‘the above disclosures are provided by the Company based on the information available with the Company in respect of the registration status of its

vendors

26 Other financial liablities

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Current

Security Deposit 2.00 200
Credilurs {ur capital supplies/ services 34.40 112.04
Employee benefits payable 7.46 828
Total 42.86 122.32

27 Other current liablities

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Advance from customers 117 65 68.53
Refund liabilties® 129,12 65.40
Statutory liabilities 142.97 98.93
Tatal 369.74 232.86
*Refund liabilitles

Where a customer has a right Lo return a product within a given year, Lhe company recognises a refund liabilily for the amount of the revenue recognised
for which the entity does not expect lo be enlitled Rs, 129.12 Lakhs { March 31, 2024:- 6540 Lakhs) . The Company also recognises right to recover the
returned goods for Rs. 80.47 lakhs (March 31, 2024; Rs. 34.76 lakhs)( Refer Note 16). ‘The custs to recover the products are not malerial as the customers
usually return them in a saleable condition.
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28 Provislons Asay gt
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Provision for gratuity (refer note 48) 9.62 13.98
Provision for compensated absences 135.22 192.92
Stock Appreciatlon Rights (refer note 49) 11944 fi1.06
Total 264.28 26H.H6

The entire amount of provision of Rs. 135.22 lakhs (March 31, 2024 - Rs. 192.92 Lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these
abligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of acerued leaves or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.

f Leave nbligation not expected to he settled within the next 12 months 124.08 176.76
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29 Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods/ services to customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expect to be entitled for those goods/ services.

To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five-step approach:

» Identify the contract with a customer;

= Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

* Determine the transaction price;

= Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
» Recognise revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products

Revenue from sales of products is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of returns, customer incentives, discounts, variable
consideration and other similar charges offered by the Company) allocated to that performance obligation.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company in its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the
seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Assets and liabilities arising from right to return

The Company has contracts with customers which entitles them the unconditional right to return.

Right to return assets

Aright of return gives an entity a contractual right to recover the goods from a customer (return to return asset), if the customer exercises its option
to return the goods and obtain a refund. The asset is measured at the carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods,
including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Refund liahilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund part or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer. The Company has therefore
recognised refund liabililies in respect of customer’s right to return. The liability is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will
have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimate of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the

end of each reporting period.

The Company has presented its right to return assets and refund liabilities under other current assets and other current liabilities, respectively.

Other operating revenue

The Company provide the facility of listing the goods of other supplier on the E-Commerce platform of the Company. The Company recognizes
revenue when the orders of goods placed on website of the Company which pertains to other supplier.

Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
Sale of goods 9,018.52 7,925.40
Other operating revenue 14.27 34.07
9,032.79 7,959-47
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price
Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
Revenue as per contracted price 9,161.91 8,024.87
Adjustment for:
Refund liability 129,12 65.40
Revenue as per Statement of Profit and Loss 9,032.79 7,059.47
30 Other income Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
Unwinding of interest on security deposit 73.78 61.09
Gain on sale of current investments 19.21 49.21
Net fair value gain on financial instruments at FVTPL 26.22 18.63
Gain on termination of leases 102.00 108.46
Credit balances written back 29.92 8.55
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 62.42 -
Miscellaneous Income 6,42 4.36
1319.97 250.30
N




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN: U51900MH2012PTCg22224

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwisc stated)

31 Cost of raw materials consumed

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year
Less: Inventories at the end of the year

32 Changes in inventories of work in progress, stock in trade and finished goods

Opening inventories
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade

Closing inventories
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories
33 Purchases of stock-in- trade

Purchase of stock-in- trade
Total

34 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and allowances

Contribution to provident and other funds(refer note 48)
Gratuity expenses (refer note 48)

Staff welfare expense

Provision for stuck uption plans (refer note 49)

35 Finance costs

Interest on:

- Lease liabilities

- Borrowings

- Micro enterprises and small enterprises

Fair value impact on financial instruments at FVTPL

36 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3(a))
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 3(c))
Amortisation of right-of-use asset (Refer note 4)

Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
505.29 791.10
505.29 791.10
Yecar ended Yecar ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
107.34 275.21
1,298.97 897.47
2,521.24 1,999.00
3,927.55 3,171.68
163.56 107.34
1,206.05 1,298.97
2,479.52 2,521.24
3,849.13 3,927.55
78.42 (755.87)
Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
2,958.04 3.517.48
2,958.04 3,517.48
Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
1,782.59 2,403.11
50.50 74.08
49.22 64.11
83.62 64.69
57.48 19.6Y
2,023.41 2,625.68
Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
655.54 643.51
1,020.15 735.69
0.87 -
2,47 1.40
1,688.03 1,380.60
Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
768.05 802.26
156.39 52.81
1,772.82 1,662.67
2,697.26 2,517.74
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37 Other expenses Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
Processing charges 363.19 520.81
Designing charges 1.67 12.10
Rent 167.69 54.06
Information technology expenses 452,18 386.29
Transportation charges 172.43 215.08
Advertiscment and sales promotion 927.89 028.84
Legal and professional charges (refer note below) 1,311.38 851.90
-Building 335.98 240.57
-Others 58.37 117.08
Travelling and conveyance 102.97 122.69
Security & House keeping expenses 209.30 235.80
Telephone and Internet expenses 83.06 33.64
Rates and taxes 35.12 36.98
Commission and Brokerage 322.52 -
Insurance 18.29 46.93
Printing and stationary 9.40 10.35
Power, fuel and water charges 253.09 152.05
Bank charges 122.12 130.20
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 0.64
Courier charges 7.94 2.51
Bad debts Written back 32.45 .
Less Provision for doubtful debt written back (32.45) -
Miscellaneous expenses 41.36 62.90
4,995.95 4,161.42
Note : Audit remuneration
Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
As auditor:
- Audit fee 11.50 6.60
- Other Certifications - 2.00
Out of pocket expenses 1.25 1.03
12.75 9.63
38 Income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:
a. Tax expense recognised in statement of profit or loss
Year ended Year ended March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024
Current income tax:
Current tax on profit for the year - -
Deferred tax:
(Gains)/losses relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - (329.56)
Income tax expense/(credit) ® (329.56)
b. Tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income
Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan (3.81) 33.46
Income tax effect - (1.36)
Tax expense recognised in OCI (3.81) 32.10
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c. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:

Year ended Year ended March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024
Profit before tax (5,593.64) (6,028.38)
Tax credit at India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% 25.17% 25.17%
Computed tax credit (1,407.93) (1,517.34)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Deferred tax asset not recognized in the absence of reasonable certainty 1,367.72 1,181.80
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible(taxable) in calculating taxable income -
-Others 40.21 5.98
Unabsorbed depreciation ' )
* (329.56)

Note: During the year, deferred tax asset has not been recognised on carry forward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available before such losses expire against which the Company can use the benefits
therefrom.

Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into
Equity shares.

The following reflects the profit and share data used for the basic and diluted EPS computation: Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024

Loss attributable to equity holders for basic earnings (5,593.64) (5,698.82)

Weighted average number of equity shares 164.47 147.17

Basic earnings per share (34.01) (38.72)

Net (loss) for calculation of diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS *
Diluted earnings per share (34.01) (38.72)

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in share transactions during the year. There have
been no other transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these
financial statements

* Note:-There are no diluted instruments.
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40 Commitments and contingencies

a) Capital Commitment

The Company has capital commitments as at March 31, 2025 of Rs. 115.62 Lakhs ( March 31, 2024: Rs. 224.53 Lakhs ) net of advances.

b) Contingent Liabilities Year ended March  Year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Income Tax* 4,414.68 -

Goods and Service Tax ** 89.23 .

Total 4,503.91 -

* Represent an amount of demand raised bythe Income tax department for financial year 2020-21. The Company had filed an appeal with
the Commisiioner of Income tax (Appeals ) challenging the same.

** Demand raised by the Goods and Services department for the FY 2019-20 , 2020-21 and 2023-24 . The Company had filed a reply with
the assiatant commissioner challenging the same.

c) Corporate Guarantee
The Company has not given corporate guarantee as at March 31, 2025 ( March 31, 2024: Nil).

41 Leases
The Company has entered into agreements for taking on the lease office buildings/stores. Leases of office buildings/stores generally have

lease terms from 5 to 10 years with escalation clauses in the lease agreements.

Year ended March Year ended March

(i) The amounts reognized in Balance Sheet: 31, 2025 31, 2024
Right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 6,131.13 5,930.67
Lease Liabilities
Non Current (refer note 19) 5.564.84 5,438.19
Current (refer note 24) 1,829.50 1,375.89

(ii) The following are the amounts recognized in profit or loss: Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2025 31, 2024
Depreciation expense for right-of-use assets (refer note 36) 1,772.82 1,662.67
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 35) 655.54 643.51
2,428.36 2,306.18

(iii) The Company has used the following practical expedient:
Accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months treated as short-term leases.

(iv) Extension and Termination option:
Extension and Termination options are included in all the contracts of short term lease and both are exercisable at mutual consent of Lessor

and Lessee.

b) The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed below (undiscounted value):

As at As at
rch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than one year "o Charlere g O WIVIE ;1& 2,426.48 1,918.63
After one year but not longer than five years , C:,.\ 6,734.14 6,256.52
\ 1 \p,160.62 8,175.15
=1
~ *}
LS
i 0\*

42 Segment information
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided-teflie chief operating decision maker
(CODM). The Board of Directors of the Company is identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"), CODM evaluates the
performance of the Company based on the single operative segment for the purpose of allocation resources and evaluating financial
performance.

The Company is domiciled in Tndia. Most of the revenue comes (rom India. There are no assets held by the Company outside India.
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43 Fair values
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at March 31, 2025
Tinancial assets

Security deposits - = 1,095.44 1,095.44 - - -
Trade receivables - - 620.81 620.81 = & -
Cash and cash equivalents = = 632.56 632.56 - = =
Other financial assets = = 437.84 437.84 - - -
Total - : 2.786.65 2,7806.05 = = =
Financial liabilities

Borrowings = & 7,022.50 7,022.50 - - -
Trade payables - = 3,513.65 3,513.65 = = =
Other financial liabilities B - 42.86 42.86 - - -
Total B - 10,579.01 10,579.01 = = =

As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets

Security deposits s - 798.61 798.61 e . =
Trade receivables - - 183.92 183.92 = £ -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,355.57 1,355.57 - - -
Other financial assets - ~ 266.23 266.23 - - -
Total = - 2.604.33 2,604.33 - - -
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 10,166.02 10,166.02 - - -
Trade payables = - 3,163.86 3,163.86 “ = =
Other financial liabilities - - 122.32 122,32 & - -
Total - - 1 2.20 13.452.20 - - .

The above table also explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
measured at amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the Financial Statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the Indian Accounting Standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath.

Level 1: Fair value of financial instruments traded in active market is based on quoted market price at the end of the reporting period.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs

required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfer between levels during the year.
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44 Related party disclosures

a. Related parties

Deseription of relationship Names of velated parties
Holding Company Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited
Fellow subsidiaries with whom the House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited

Company had transactions
TCNS Clothing Co Ltd
Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
Finesse International Design Private Limited

Subsidiary Jaypore Fashions Inc

Keyr t per 1 ("KMP")

Mr. Ashish Dikshit, Director

Mr. Jagdish Bajaj, Director

Mr. Amit Dwivedi, CEO (w.e.f. October 25, 2023)
Mr Ullal Sooraj Bhat, CEO (upto May 7, 2023)

Mr. Saurav Shah (CFO) (Upto October 23, 2023)
Mr. Rajeev Agrawal, CFO (w.e.f. October 25, 2023)

b. Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured
and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Relationshi Year ended March | Year ended March
clationship 31,2025 31,2024

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Holding Company
Sale of products 22.50 71.37
Legal and Professional Charges 469.89 484.24
Purchase of Asset 36.38 -
Interest expense 735.99 392.54
Collection received from ABFRL in respect of our E-com Sale(Paytm) 220.89 -
Security Deposit transferred - 27.00
Proceeds of Borrowings 8,653.00 5,932.00
Repayment of Borrowings 8,500.00 1,500.00
Jaypore Fashions Ine Subsidiary
Investment in Equity Shares = 4.25
Sale of products 66.08 9.34
Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary
Purchase of Assets - 253.82
Purchase of Product 0,67 -
Reimbursement of Expenses 33.95 0.6
Graluity & Leave Liability Transfer 2.88 "
TCNS Clothing Co Lid Fellow Subsidiary
Reimbursement of Expenses - 1.20
Finesse International Design Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary
Sale of products - 0.08
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¢. Outstanding balances

The following table provides the closing balances of related parties for the relevant financial year:

Relati hi As at As at

cationship March 31,2025 Mar 31, 2024
Borrowings
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Holding Company 6,085.00 5,932.00
Trade payables
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Holding Company 165.93 96.33
Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary 0.34 200.27
Trade receivables
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Holding Company 175.00 72.03
TCNS Clothing Co Ltd Fellow Subsidiary - 1.42
Jaypore Fashions Inc Subsidiary 58.61 9.34
Finesse International Design Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary = -
Advance From Customer
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Fellow Subsidiary 46.49
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45 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, lease liabilities, trade payables, bank overdraft, and employee related payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include
trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalent that derive directly from its operations. The Company does not enters into derivative transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s
senior management is responsible to ensure that Company’s financial risk activities which are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing

each of these risks, which are summarised below.

(i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two

types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt as at March 31, 2025.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations and provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

(a) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has
debt obligations with floating interest rates, hence, is not exposed to interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held
constant, the Company’s loss before tax is affected through the impact on borrowings, as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Basis points (%) 0.50% increase | 0.50% decrease | 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) on loss before tax 34.18 (34.18) 46.14 (46.14)

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a
significantly higher volatility than in the prior years.

(b) Foreign currency risk
The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as at reporting date.

(ii) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. To manage this, the
Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counterparties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and
analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on the basis of such information. Credit risk from
balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

The Company only deals with parties which has good credit rating given by external rating agencies or based on the Company’s internal assessment.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable dues where recoveries are
made, these are recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and security deposits)

(a) Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a
customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer

receivables are regularly monitored.

The majority of the sales of the company happens in cash .The Company does not have significant trade recievables. An impairment analysis is performed at cach
reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed below. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration
of risk with respect to trade receivables as low on the basis of past default rates of its customers.

Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no provision is considered.
Reconciliation of Loss allowance on trade receivables :

Amount
As at April o1, 2023 37.16
Addition/(Deletion) during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 37.16
Addition/(Deletion) during the year (32.45)
As at March 31, 2025 4,71
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(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the
Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s finance committee. The
limits are set to minjmise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's financing activities are
managed centrally hy maintaining an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to finance the Company's operations. The Company has substantial trade receivable
balance which is expected to be recovered within 12 months. The Company also uses cash credit and bank loans as a mode of funding. The Company manages its
surplus funds centrally by placing them with reputable financial institution with high credit rating and no history of default.

More than 5
Less than 1 year 1to 5 years years Total

As at March 31, 2025
Trade payables 3,513.65 = - 3,513.65
Borrowings 6,835.00 187.50 - 7,022.50
Lease liabilities 2,426.48 6,734.14 - 9,160.62
Other financial liabilities 42.86 - - 42.86

12,817.99 6,921.64 - 19,739.63
As at March 31, 2024
Trade payables 3,163.86 - = 3,163.86
Borrowings 9,228.52 937.50 < 10,166.02
Lease liabilities 1,918.63 6,256.52 - 8,175.15
Other financial liabilities 122.32 - - 122.32

14,433-33 7,194.02 = 21,627.35
Capital management

The Company’s objective, when managing capital is to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,
support the corporate strategy and meet shareholder’s expectations. The policy of the Company is to borrow through Holding Company to meet anticipated funding
requirements. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirement of financial

markets.

The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, and is monitored by various metrics. Funding requirements are reviewed periodically
with any debt issuances.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt (total borrowings and lease liabilities net of cash and cash equivalents)

Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet).

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Net Debt (refer note 23) 13,784.28 15,624.53
Total Equity 2,478.02 575.47
Net Debt to Equity 5.56 27.15

The Company has not declared dividend during the ycar ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule II1

(i) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the entity for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of

1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The statements filed by the entity with banks are in

agreement with the unaudited books of accounts.

(iii) wilful defaulter
The Company hasn't been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956 during the year,

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
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(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financia) year.

(vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding

that the Intermediary shall:
1. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

or
2. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in

writing or otherwise) that the group shall:
1. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

2. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(viii) Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

(ix) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(x) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property

The Company has chosen cost model for it's Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and Intangible assets, and hence no revaluation was carried
out for these assets.

(xi) The Company is not a Core Investment Company {CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
(xii) The Group (Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited) has 4 CICs (registered and unregistered) as part of the Group.
(xiii) The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken.

(xiv) Subesequent to the year end the Company Secretary of the Company had vacate his office. The company is in the process of filling the such vacany within the time
allowed as per the provisionsd of the Companies Act, 2013.
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48 Defined contribution and defined benefit plans

A. Defined contribution plans
(i). Employers' contribution to Provident Fund

The Company has defined contribution plan in form of provident fund for qualifying employees. Contributions are made to provident
fund for employees at the rate of 12% of salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to Employee Providend Fund
Organisation (EPFO) registered provident fund administered by the Government of India. The obligation of the Company is limited
to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or constructive obligation. The expense recogniscd during the year

towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 49.35 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 71.41 lakhs).

(ii) Employers' contribution to Employee's state insurance scheme is Rs. 1.15 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 2.67 lakhs).

B. Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. Under this plan, every employee is entitled tothe benefit
equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service or

retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five years of continuous service.

(i) The amounts recognized through Profit and Loss and other comprehensive income:

Particulars Year ended March  Year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Gratuity cost charged to profit or loss

Current service cosl 33.44 44.89

Interest expense 15.78 19.22
49.22 64.11

Gratuity cost charged to other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains)/losses 3.81 (33.46)

3.81 (33.46)

(ii) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the defined benefit obligation over the

year are as follows:

Changes in the present value of Defined Benefit Obligation(DBO) are as follows :

As at March 31, As at March 31, 2024
2025
Changes in Present value of the obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 261.82 255.30
Current service cost 33.44 44.89
Interest cost 15.78 19.22
Actuarial loss on account of
-Changes in financial assumptions 13.85 10.56
-Experience adjustments (10.04) (44.02)
Actuarial loss recognised in OCI 3.81 (33.46)
Benefits paid (70.05) (24.61)
Transfer in (42.54) 0.47
202.26 261.81

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation

Bifurcation of Closing Defined Benefit Obligation

As al March 31,

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

2025
Current 0.62 13.98
Non-Current 192.64 247.83
Total 202.26 261.81

*
(2
e * GurugrdT
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(ii) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the company’s plans are shown

below:
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 2024
2025
Discount rate 6.70% 7.20%
Salary growth rate 9.00% 9.00%
Retirement age 62 62
Attrition rate
Upto 30 years 10% 10%
3110 44 years 7% 7%
Above 44 years 2% 2%
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14

(iii) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant,

would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Sensitivity level Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate(-/+1%) 30.71 (27.65) 38.15 (34.41)
Salary growth rate(-/+1%) (19.80) 21.06 (26.23) 26.74
Attrition rate(-/+1%) 2.52 (2.25) 2.55 (2.30)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior year.

(iv) The following represents maturity profile for the defined benefit plan in future years :

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 2024
2025

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 9.62 13.98

Between 2 and 5 years 43.69 58.19

Between 6 and 10 years 52.60 88.63

Beyond 10 years 559.00 762.65

Total expected cash flow profile (payments) 664.91 923.45

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 14 years (March 31, 2022: 14 years).

Expected contributions to defined benefits plan for the year ended March 31, 2025 is T Nil (March 31, 2024 : T Nil).

(v) Risk Exposures
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed
below:

Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future

valuations will also increase the liability.
Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
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49 Lquity Settled share option plan

The r ized in Bal Sheet:

. As nt Asal
Particulars Mirch 31 2025 March 0w
Provision for stock apprecialion right (Refer table below) 119.44 61.96
‘T'otal 119.44 61.96

The T ised in the of Profit and loss
Particulars Ycar ended March 31, 2025 Yienr: ""l“_, Murch
— A1, 2oy
Provision for stock aption plans 5748 0.6
‘rotal FreY: | —
Stock Apprecistion Rights
Aditya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited (Holding Company) has impl d SAR- Stock appreciation Rights a share option plan for the bers of senior including of the Company. The SARs compensalion cost is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the tolal vesting year . Options are forfeited if the emplayee leaves the Company before the options vest The granting of Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs") has been made by the Holding Company to the eligible
employees of the Company, the ination and ion C: i pp d plan as on ber 03, 2021. The shares will be issucd post payment of consideration Lo Aditya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited and hence the same
has been treated as liability
AR p01g S TAR nu10 Sehmne
SARs A SARu
Option SARs RSUs Option SARs RSUs
Method of accounting Fair value Fair value Method of TFair value Fair value
ageounting
Vesting plan Viesting plan
August 18, 2022 onlwards Bullet vesting Graded vesling Bullet Vesting
and graded vesting
Exercise period 3 years from the date of | 3 years from the date of Hxervise 3 years from the date of vesling 3 years from the date of vesting
vesling vesting period
Grant date August 18, 2021 Onwards | August 18, 2024 Unwards Ciramt date August 07, 2024 onwards August 07, 2024 Onwards
Grant price (¥ per share) Cirant price (¥
206.35 10 275.10 10.00 per share) 248.55 to 318.90 10.00
Market price on the date of Market price
ranting of SARs (X per share oni the date of
g g ®pe ) HSE - 205.80 to 278.50 | BSE - 205.80 to 278 50 mn:nﬁnf BSE - 242.15 to 323.90 BSE - 242.15 10 323.90
NSE - 205,90 to 277.90 | NSE -205.90 to 277.90 NSE - 242.30 t0 323.05 NSE - 242.30 10 323,05
AN (T per
share)
Metlionl of settlament Cash Cash Mé‘l‘hﬂi of Casht Cash
Optons RSUs
Expected dividend yield (%) Nil Nil
Expected volatility (%) 38.57t0 40.35 40.67 to 43.92
Risk-free interest rate (%) 6.92106.94 6.92 to 6.97
Weighted average fair value per 89.90 to 120.71 247.4310271.34
SAR (%)
Model used nadel del
. As at March
SAR Plan Dctails Grant Date Vesting Date Exercisc date \(/Iu;lng y‘;:la;- Fair Value of Options As(nl: Mn;csl;l::::;(;zs 31,2024
MIASOTRALS 010 {No. of Shares)
SARs-Tranche | - wt Vostioy | iy-Aug-iq uy-Augeag oF-Aug-a8 12 9345 4,656 -
SAR'Y- Trinchie - 2nd Vesting o7-Aug-rg n7-Aug-3f peAngag o Bl 4,656 -
SAR's- Tranche 1 - Bullet Vesting u7-Aug-ig o Augeth 0F-Aug-29 24 27134 4,219 -
Total 13,531
N As at March
SAR Plan Details Grant Date Vesting Date Exercisc date Ylu:lng yl;:ln; Falr Value of Options M(.ls M:If‘csl;lal,Z())ZS 31,2024
e —— h ares, {No. of Shares)
BAR M- Tramche 2 « 0 Vesting O-Aug-ay 07-Aug-35 oy Auig-nf 1 109, 2567 | -
SAR'- Tranche 2 - ol Visting oAUty a7-Aug-afi ap-Augay [ 115,08 AdnT =
SAR’s- Tranche 4 - ard Vesting Ur-Aug-ty wB-Aug-uy uli-Auy =30 36 117.6 A457
|AR's-"Tranche 2 - Bullet Vesting 07-Aug-24 nl-Aug-a7 o8- Auj-54) A 24743 7,069 -
Tulal . 18,640
) As at March
SAR Plan Details Grant Date Vesting Date Exercise datc Vlu;';g y.;" Fair Value of Options As ':: MI;';';ISI,21;25 31,2024
(In Months) {No. of Shares; (Na. of Shares)
SAI - Tranche % - 1t Vesti 18-Ang-an 1A 1B-Ang=pn ] Hena 9,54 9.924
SAR's-Tranche 3 - o Vesting 18-Aug-21 18-Aug-23 18-Aug-26 24 [ 9,029 9,924
SARS- Tranche 3 - yrd Vesting 18-Aug-21 17-Aug-2p ip-Aug-2fl 44 0.0 4,961 s uuzg
HAlUs- ‘Tranche 3 - Bulict Veating 18-Aug 21 18-Atig-04 19-Aug-u7 it 268,72 11239 10,299
Total PR L 40,001
fq As at March
SAR Plan Details Grant Date Vesting Date Exercise date ‘(,l:s‘];'g y“ell;' Fair Valuc of Options As(a;(l)Vln;cs);‘:::,:s())zs 31,2024
g i {No. of Shares)
SAR's- Tranche § - i1 Viosting GrAlg-zouz fi-Aug-03 Sedgezoah 1 60143 2igba -
SAR's- Tranche 5 - 2nd Vesting ArAug-dous SrAug-aiizg 4-Aug-soay a6 gAY 2,961 -
[SAR'.-Tranche § - jyrd Veiting P e 4-Aug-2025 Aol 36 win Fahn =
5AR's- Tranche 5 - Builet Vesting 1-AUg-2025 I-Aug-zoal af by, 68 17,850 =
[Total 37,757 .

Chartereg
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50 Financial ratios

f - As at As al Reason for variance
Parliculars Numerator Denominator UOM March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 % varlance (where varlance is more than 25%)
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities (excluding Times 0.76 0.65 17.15% Not Applicable
Lease Liabilities accounted as
per Ind AS 116)
T3ehi- Equity Ratio Total debt excluding Lease Equity Times 2.76 16.04 (82 80%)| Due to fresh borrowings & Equity
liabilities infusion
Debt Service Coverage ratio | Earning for debl service = Net Dbt sarvice = Interest and Times (0.41) (0.73)] (44 06%)| This is due to increase in Interest
profit afler taxes + Non-cash principal repayments including and lease bligation in
operaling expenses liFe leass puyments year ended March 31, 2025 as compared
depreciation and other to previous year,
amortisations + Interest + other
udjustments 1iPe loss un sale of
PP&E.
Return on Equity ratio Loss for the year Average Equity Percentage (366.38%) (263.98%))| (102.40%}| Increase on account of accumulated loss
Inventary Turnmver pitie Revenue from opetationi Average inventories Times LG u.24 D60%] NA
Trade Receivable Turnover | Revenue from operations Average traite roceivahles Times 22 45 54.62 {58.90%)| Decrease on account of higher retail sale
Ratio
Trade Payable Turnover Total purchases of raw meteridl | Averape frade playables Times 1.04 176, (41.20%)| Decrease on account of decrease in
Ratio and stocF-in-trade purch
Net Capital Tunover Ratio | Revenue from Operations Average working capital = ‘Times (1.73) (179} 6.6%| Not Applicable
Current assets - Current
Tiahi1s
Net Profit ratio Laves fur the year Revenue from Operations Percentags Doy ZLAo% 9.67% | Nat Appilicable
Return on Capital Employed | Earnings before interest and tax | Average capital employed = Percentage -30%] -37% 6.79% | Not Applicable
Equity + Lease Liabilities +
Borrowings - Deferred tax assets
Return on Investment Eamnings before interest and tax Average total ansets Vercentage -18.10% =23 A1N 5 q0%] Mat Applicable
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51. Significant accounting policies

i.

Financial assets
Classification and initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the asset. The Company determines the classilication of
its financial assets at initial recognition. The Company classifies the financial assets in the following
measurement categories: '

e Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through profit or loss, or through other
comprehensive income)
e Those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables which do not
contain a significant financing component) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable Lo the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets are
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss when the same are managed by the
Company on the basis of their fair value and their performance is evaluated on fair value basis in
accordance with a risk management or investment strategy of the Company. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) if these financial

assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the };ef)xgﬁ\taonot impairment gains
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ii.

or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when

e The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
e Retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

When the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset
is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairmenl of financial assets

The Company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies simplified approach required by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
receivables.

Income recognition - Interest

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity.

The Company’s financial liabilities includes borrowings, lease liability, trade and other payables.
Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liahilities carried at fair value through profit or loss)

are deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial liability. Financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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(All

ii.

iv.

(a)
(b)

amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial ljability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance cost.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Fair value measurements and hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use, or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances, and for which
sufficient data are available to measure the fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy based on its nature, characteristics and risks:

Level 1 - inputs are quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabililies thal are recognised in Lhe [inancial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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V.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other
gains/(losses). ,

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.
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Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to
the Financial Statements.

Retirement and other employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee beheﬁts

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual basis.
(b) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes defined contribution to the Government Employee Provident Fund, which are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual basis. The Company recognises contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

(¢) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

(d) Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the
same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a result of the unused
entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company’s liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. The
obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.
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x1.

xii.

xiii.

(e) Share based payments

Employees of the Group (Companies forming part of Aditya Birla Group) receive remuneration in the
form of stock appreciation rights for rendering services over a defined vesting period.

For cash-settled share-based payment, a liability is recognised for the goods or services acquired,
measured initially at the fair value of the liability using a binomial method. At the end of each reporting
period until the liability is settled and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is re-measured,
with any changes in the fair value recognised in ‘Employee benefits expense’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year.

Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, remaining unsettled at the end of the
year, are translated at the closing exchange rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or the Statement of Profit and Loss are also
reclassified in OCI or the Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the
cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Taxes

Current tax

The Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date in India.

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situalions in which
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or a liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset
relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor the taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date, and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss are
recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax and deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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xv. Segment information

Operating segmonts are toported in a manner consistent with the inters
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